
 
INYO COUNTY 

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
P.O. DRAWER Q 

    INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
                                 PHONE:  (760) 878-0201  

                                 FAX:    (760) 878-2001  
Michael Errante, Executive Director    
 

AGENDA 

 
INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 
On-line Only 

Justine Kokx is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 

Topic: Inyo County Local Transportation Commission Meeting 
Time: Feb 15, 2023, 09:00 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87450398522?pwd=Mk1JbDBlTDErN3liQ0Q2U082OFEwUT09 

 
Meeting ID: 874 5039 8522 

Passcode: 204249 
 

+1 669 444 9171 US 
Meeting ID: 874 5039 8522 

Passcode: 204249 
 

 
All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda. Questions and 

comments will be accepted via e-mail to: jkokx@inyocounty.us.   Any member of the public may also make comments during 
the scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Inyo County Local Transportation 

Commission.  PUBLIC NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Transportation Commission Secretary at (760) 878-0201.  Notification 48 hours 

prior to the meeting will enable the Inyo County Local Transportation Commission to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting (28CFR 35. 102-35. ADA Title II). 

 

February 15, 2023 

  9:00 a.m.  Open Meeting 

1. Introductions  

2. Roll Call 

3. Public Comment 

4. Presentation by Inyo County Counsel Christy Milovich regarding the Brown Act and 
teleconference rules upon termination of the COVID-19 state of emergency.  

 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87450398522?pwd=Mk1JbDBlTDErN3liQ0Q2U082OFEwUT09
mailto:jkokx@inyocounty.us


 
ACTION ITEMS 

 
1. Consent Agenda 

 
a. Staff of the Local Transportation Commission - Request approval of the minutes of the 

meeting of January 18, 2023. 

  DISCUSSION ITEMS 

2. Caltrans presentation of the Road Charge Pilot Study 

3. Discuss the option to change ICLTC regular meeting start time to 8:00 am. 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

4. FY2022-2023 Q2 Overall Work Plan and Rural Planning Assistance invoice 
 

5. Synopsis of County operations on Buttermilk Road  
 

6.  ESTA Report 

7. Caltrans Report 

8.  City of Bishop Report 

9.  Tribal Report  

10.  DVNP Report 

11.  USFS Report 

12.  Executive Director’s Report  

13.  Reports from all members of the Inyo County LTC 

  CORRESPONDENCE 

  None 

  ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned until 9 a.m., Wednesday March15, 2023, Quilter Consolidated Office Building, 
Conference Room # 207 
 
 
 
 



UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS 
• Social Services Transit Advisory Committee and Unmet Needs meeting & public hearing 
• Adopt FY2023-2024 Overall Work Program  
• Apportion FY2023-2024 LTF and STA allocations  
• RTP, RTIP and ATP project prioritization 
• MOU and negotiations Inyo County LTC, Mono County LTC, and Kern Cog 

 



 
INYO COUNTY 

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
P.O. DRAWER Q 

    INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
                                 PHONE:  (760) 878-0201  

                                 FAX:    (760) 878-2001  
Michael Errante, Executive Director    
 

MINUTES 

 
INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 
On-line Only 

 
 
All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda. Questions and 
comments will be accepted via e-mail to: jkokx@inyocounty.us.   Any member of the public may also make comments during 
the scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission.  PUBLIC NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Transportation Commission Secretary at (760) 878-0201.  Notification 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the Inyo County Local Transportation Commission to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting (28CFR 35. 102-35. ADA Title II). 

   

January 18, 2023 

  9:01 a.m.  Open Meeting 

1. Introductions  

2. Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: 
Stephen Muchovej 
Celeste Berg 
Doug Thompson 
Jose Garcia 
Jennifer Roeser 
Scott Marcellin 
 
Others Present: 
John Pinckney Inyo County Public Works 
Michael Errante Inyo County Public Works 
Nora Gamino City of Bishop Public Works Director 
Justine Kokx LTC staff 
Brandon Bardonnex Secretary LTC 
Neil Peacock Caltrans 
Juven Alvarez Caltrans 
Jill Tognazzini Caltrans 
Catharine Crane Caltrans 

 

mailto:jkokx@inyocounty.us


Jenny Park IMAH 
Adam Barnett USFS 
Phil Moores ESTA Executive Director 
 

3. Public Comment 

No Comment 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

 
1. Election of Officers - The LTC By-Laws state the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be nominated and 

then elected at the first meeting of the calendar year. 
 
*Motion to nominate Celeste Berg as Chair was made by Commissioner Muchovej and 
seconded by Commissioner Roeser. All in favor. 
 
*Motion to nominate Doug Thompson as Vice-Chair was made by Commissioner 
Muchovej and seconded by Commissioner Roeser. All in favor. 
 

2. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Staff of the Local Transportation Commission - Request your Commission authorize the 
February 15th, 2023, meeting during a state of emergency to be conducted virtually, in 
accordance with AB 361. 

b. Staff of the Local Transportation Commission - Request approval of the minutes of the 
meeting of November 16, 2022. 

c. Staff of the Local Transportation Commission - Request approval of the minutes of the 
Special AB361 meeting of December 15, 2022. 

*Motion to approve was made by Commissioner Roeser and seconded by Commissioner 
Muchovej. All in favor. 

 

  DISCUSSION ITEMS 

3. Adam Barnett Public Services Staff Officer of the US Forest Service, Inyo National Forest was 
available to discuss trailhead capacity and improvement issues with the LTC. 

Commissioner Roeser asked Adam how the USFS is using deferred maintenance funding to address 
the overflowing parking problems, inefficient use of space and environmental concerns related to the 
parking along the sides of roads. 

Adam talked about the Great American Outdoors act funding that is being used to renovate parking 
lots at potentially up to 40 trailheads.  Yes, they are looking at designing the parking spaces more 
efficiently, but in general, parking will still be problematic during busy periods.  



Commissioner Muchovej asked if there is a list of specific projects coming down the pipeline that 
will impact trailheads?  Do you have priority lists?  Adam replied, yes, and he will share this with 
the Commission. 

Vice Chair Thompson brought up the complexity of trailhead capacity at Whitney Portal, Horseshoe 
Meadows due to the JMT and PCT hikers parking for several weeks.  The issue is further 
complicated by 200 Whitney permits issued per day, and the locals wanting to enjoy a picnic; there’s 
no parking on the weekends.  There is a lack of transportation options to get to the trailheads. 

Commissioner Muchovej added that ESTA has been providing some trailhead services, but does the 
Forest Service have any plans to get more involved in shuttle services? 

Adam replied that the USFS has minimized bureaucratic barriers to private shuttle services.  They 
have new traffic data as a part of the SCE hydropower relicense project, the 2013 alternative 
transportation plan is still valid and should be re-visited. 

Commissioner Roeser appreciates the simplifying of the bureaucratic process, and asked if he knew 
of any resources that could help with increasing shuttle services.   Adam referred to some small 
communities that have tackled the issue, see the City of Sedona and Aspen.  These are affluent 
communities with access to funding, but the Federal Highway Administration might have some 
funding for alternative transportation. 

Commissioner Roeser is super excited to see trailhead kiosk updates occurring.   

Commissioner Muchovej asked about parking enforcement, who enforces overnight vs. day parking? 

Adam replied that the USFS law enforcement is responsible for enforcement if there is adequate 
signage.  Staffing is an issue, 2 million acres, and 2000 miles of roads. 

Vice Chair Thompson brought up the parking signage at the Portal restricting parking days vs.  
overnight, 3 days, etc.  That helped, but that signage is now gone.  Need a whole package of shuttle 
services, seven days, up and down 395.  This is needed to feed the whole local economy.  Having 
limited cell service also complicates the logistics of using a shuttle service.  Sometimes people arrive 
a day early or late, how do they get down.  He tells them to hook up with another person coming off 
the trail. 

Commissioner Roeser added that perhaps encouraging traffic to different trailheads could be an 
option, but some of the dirt trailheads are kind of a mess and need to be rehabbed.  

Adam agreed, and mentioned that social media and the Instagram “craze” have been a powerful 
force in directing people one way or another.  We’re seeing this at Big Pine Creek, North Fork ,and 
Big Pine Trailhead, for example. 

Commissioner Muchovej asked does it fall under the purview of the Forest Service to address the 
horrible parking issues at the Buttermilk Country?  Even five years ago, it was uncommon to see a 
couple of cars parked along the sides of the roads, now it looks like two lanes of parking on either 
sides of the brush. Is there an effort underway in conjunction with ESSRP to address the impacts?  



Yes, great question. So, there's a mosaic of ownership in the Buttermilk area. The Forest Service is 
definitely part of it. But the BLM and DWP are also major landowners in the area. There is some 
funding that went to the SCOG, but the money was provided originally by DWP for planning work 
in the Buttermilk area, recreation planning, and the funds are being used to replace the toilet at the 
Buttermilk area’s major parking area. So, there's definitely an interest among partners, including 
DWP to do recreation planning and the greater Buttermilk areas to address the increase of dispersed 
camping and climbing. They have received funds to initiate that planning work. They've been 
working on the toilet replacement part so far. 

Commissioner Roeser asked if there are plans to improve the dirt parking lots at trailheads, for 
example, Shepherd’s Pass?  

Adam replied that right now, the initial scope had 10 paved trailheads, and 30 aggregates and 11 
native surface lots.  But things have changed in terms of what they can afford to do. They are 
prioritizing the most heavily used with the biggest issues, like Onion Valley. 

Commissioner Muchovej pointed out that the road conditions to access the dirt trailheads are so bad 
that people are avoiding them at all cost, now. 

Chair Berg also brought up the funding behind the climbing rangers (DWP and ECN), and the 
commonalities with the Forest Service in terms of infrastructure needs, and enforcement, everyone is 
spread thin. 

4. Caltrans Presentation of Projects in Inyo County  

Neil Peacock and Jill Tognazzi of Caltrans presented their upcoming project plans for Inyo County. 

The presentation prompted many questions from the Commissioners regarding complete streets 
features along Line Street near Main Street, beautification components such as trees to enhance the 
pedestrian experience near the DMV, pedestrian crossings along North Sierra Highway and near 
Manor Market, the traffic rules for pedestrian hybrid beacons, and turn lanes at the golf course. 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

5. FY2021-2022 City of Bishop Pavement Management Report 
 

Justine summarized the fiscal year pavement management report for the City of Bishop.  In a 
nutshell, the average PCI for the city is 52.5, which is in the Poor category.   
 
Also included is a memo from the Rural Counties Task Force that quantifies the disparity between 
urban and rural counties in terms of the amount of funding and the condition of PCI.  Rural counties 
fall far below in both categories.  The memo also talks about the importance of utilizing the PCI data 
to prioritize pavement repair to save dollars in the long term. 

 
Commissioner Muchovej asked for clarification on the graph that showed an example of a city that 
needed to spend $38 million to “catch up” to an overall PCI of over 70.  in the City’s report.   
 



John replied that it was included to illustrate the cost savings of focusing repair efforts away from a 
“worst first,” to a more proactive approach.  
 
Commissioner Muchovej was curious about the PCI values in the other municipalities, such as 
Independence, Lone Pine, and Big Pine.  Justine will provide the latest Pavement Management 
report for Inyo County to the Commissioners. 
 
6. FY2022-2023 Q1 Overall Work Plan and Rural Planning Assistance invoice 

 
Justine briefly described the first invoice of FY22-23.  Right on track with RPA spending so far.   
 
Commissioner Muchovej asked about the PPM funds, showing only 7% expended.   
Justine replied that because the PPM funds are allowed to be spent within three years, and the RPA 
funding is only for the current year, we prioritize expending RPA first, then begin to dig into the 
PPM funding.  

 
7. FY2020-2021 Financial Transactions Report 

 
Vice Chair Thompson mentioned that the TEA funds are still not expended.  Those funds should 
have gone to the City long a go for the Siebu to School project.   
 
Justine will investigate it and work with Nora to figure out how to get these funds to the City. 

 
8.  ESTA Report 

Phil provided a report on ESTA.  November was a little better than October in terms of ridership.  
He is always a willing partner with the Forest Service to provide shuttle service to trailheads, 
however he is going to recommend discontinuing the Bishop Creek shuttle.  Only 2 passengers per 
hour.  Can’t justify the cost. 
 
Commissioner Roeser appreciates the situation and would like to look for ways to continue that 
operation. Wonders if promotions and outreach might help it be more effective.  If we could help 
ESTA get information out there.  
 
Commissioner Muchovej wonders if we’re taking the wrong approach.  Rather than targeting the 
PCT and Thru hikers, why not target the fishing guides.   Would generate a more regular stream of 
people up to the Bishop Creek area, and on a daily basis. 
 
Phil believes there are two issues.  Reds Meadow works because there’s a restriction on automobiles, 
also people just tend to want their vehicles.  The cost is high to run that type of operation, it’s 
cheaper to drive a car, people don’t care about crowded parking.  It’s a tough nut to crack, but it 
needs the Forest Service to commit to it.   
 
Vice Chair Thompson said we need to get everybody at the table at the same time.  Maybe the LTC 
could call everybody into one meeting, and have Phil present the issues.  Only 5-day service along 
395, we’ve limited that capacity.  Can’t be piecemeal, maybe get the businesses to put in money?   



Phil said that’s a TOT type of revenue, and it can be looked at.  Phil is looking at weekend service.  
It’s a high priority.  Maybe next grant cycle.  Willing to stick his neck out, and it’s worth the risk.   
 
Vice Chair Thompson brought up the high prices of shuttle service.   
 
Commissioner Muchovej asked about the status of the Bishop facility. 
 
Phil reported that the Master Lease agreement between Inyo County and DWP is holding up the 
building.  Time sensitive, don’t want to lose the funding due to expiration of grant. 
 
Neil reminded that a letter of intent is a possible workaround for this problem.  
 
Commissioner Roeser confirmed that this is being worked on.  It is the number one negotiating issue 
between Inyo County and DWP. 
 
9. Caltrans Report 

• Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant Program 

Catharine Crayne of Caltrans discussed the upcoming grant opportunity for planning, climate 
adaptation and strategic partnerships. 
 
10.   City of Bishop Report 

Nora Gamino provided the update for the City of Bishop.  East Line Bridge is moving forward, 
alternatives analysis this month.  Public meetings will be held due to impacts when they go into 
construction.  Working with Caltrans staff to find pavement and beautification funding to coincide 
with beautification program.  
 
11.   Tribal Report  

12.   DVNP Report 

13.  USFS Report 

14.  Executive Director’s Report  

• Tri County MOU Update 

John Pinckney provided the update.  We had a meeting in early January with the Tri-County MOU 
partners.  The MOU was started in the late 1990’s.  The partnership leveraged their funding to secure 
state funding to use interregional (ITIP) funds to help fund 4-lane projects along the 395 and 14 
corridors.  A lot of success.  The latest carbon neutral agenda driven by the CTC and CALSTA has 
led to an underfunding of the ITIP funds.  Therefore, no more state funding for 4-lane projects.  The 
most recent project to move forward is the Olancha-Cartago project.  The MOU expired.  The major 
concern of staff here is that Inyo County is in a negative balance due to prior circumstances whereby 



Inyo and Mono fronted 100% of the Freeman Gulch phase I.  Kern County has not reimbursed Inyo 
and Mono.  Contrary to expectations based on previous experiences, the Kern County representative, 
Ahren Hakimi, was very interested and committed to making the two counties whole.  This was 
surprising and great news.  The means by which this happens is unclear at this point.  Ahren’s 
primary goal is to complete Highway 58 truck climbing lanes.  Ahren pointed out during the meeting 
that funds from the ITIP have been diverted to the SHOPP funding and therefore, truck climbing 
lanes are SHOPP eligible.  Caltrans Ryan Dermody reported that they have committed SHOPP 
funding to enhance safety on the remaining two sections of the Freeman Gulch project.  It was 
brought up in the meeting that conversations with SANDAG, Southern California agencies, SCAG, 
Sand Bernardino COG, are needed to gain their support, given that their constituents are the ones 
being impacted by safety issues.  Ahren will approach his southern CA contacts.  It’s a political 
process.  As we go in to the 2024 RTIP and STIP process, it would be helpful if Commissioners get 
involved.  Ahren also discussed ways to get the CTC to fund some of our projects.  The problem is 
we don’t have a lot of projects shovel ready for the RTIP because we have been so focused on the 
Olancha-Cartago project for 25 years.  We have E. Line St Bridge, and Lone Pine Town Streets, 
that’s it right now.  Need to identify new projects to include in the RTP update and in the RTIP. 
 
Vice Chair Thompson asked if Kern County was willing to sign another MOU.  How does the MOU 
prioritize projects?  Continue Freeman Gulch?  The money we committed to SANBAG for study 
between 15 and 58? 
 
No discussions of new MOU, just continuing conversations.  Thinks the next MOU priority would 
be the Conway Summit truck passing lane.  This was next in line.  Mono Co. is seeking TCEP 
funding.  It’s still somewhat hazy what funding will be used to pay Inyo back.  Without the state 
committing ITIP funding, there’s no way to fund these projects, and harder to subtract our balance 
from a project.  Kern wants to approach the CTC to try to find some of our local projects or make us 
whole through “alternative” channels.  Not sure how that works.  Further conversations are needed. 
 
Vice Chair Thompson asked what do we do, keep communication open with Kern County? 
 
John believes that we need to prioritize projects for the RTIP.   Even if the CTC could credit our 
negative balance, we would still be in the red.  Approx. $10 million in the negative. If CTC insists 
that we move forward with the negative balance through projects, we don’t have any projects ready 
with a PSR.   
 
Vice Chair Thompson mentioned how incredible it is that most of the 4 lane projects have occurred 
thanks to the MOUs.   
 
John emphasized the need to transfer State Line Road to Caltrans after the FLAP grant project is 
completed.  
 
Neil offered to help provide input and assistance on the RTIP by means of a special workshop. 
 
 
 



15.  Reports from all members of the Inyo County LTC 

Commissioner Muchovej asked the group if there can be a discussion of changing the meeting 
time to 8:00 a.m. Will agendize a discussion the next meeting. 
 
Commissioner Muchovej asked about plans to grade the various dirt roads such as Fish Slough 
after the storms.  Mike replied that the road crews are working as quickly as they can.  Mike also 
gave the crews kudos for all the hard work they provided during and after the storms.  

  CORRESPONDENCE 

  None 

  ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned at 11:31 until 9 a.m., Wednesday February 15, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS 

• California Road Charge Program and Pilot Project 
• Social Services Transit Advisory Committee meeting and Unmet Needs meeting & public hearing 
• FY2023-2024 Draft Overall Work Program due March 1st 
• FY2023-2024 LTF and STA allocations estimates due March 1st 
• RTP and ATP project prioritization 
• MOU and negotiations Inyo County LTC, Mono County LTC, and Kern Cog 

 



 

State of California • Department of Transportation  

News Release 
Date: January 31, 2023 
Contact: Michael Lingberg 
Phone: (760) 920-0280 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
 
Caltrans Seeks Rural, Tribal Volunteers for Latest ‘Road Charge’ Study 

Participants can earn up to $250 for 7-month pilot 
 
SACRAMENTO — The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) is recruiting 
volunteers who reside and travel in rural and tribal communities to participate in the 
latest testing phase of a “road charge” pilot. Up to 500 volunteers will participate in a 
seven-month simulated road charge system, which charges drivers based on the 
number of miles they travel rather than the amount of gas they use to support the 
state’s critical transportation infrastructure. There will be no cost to participate, and upon 
completion, volunteers will be eligible to receive an incentive of up to $250. 
 
“Rural and tribal communities have unique travel needs and may interact with a road 
charge system in different ways,” said Caltrans Director Tony Tavares. “It is essential 
that Caltrans understands their needs as it develops an equitable and convenient 
alternative to the gas tax.” 
 
Starting in March 2023, the California Road Charge Public-Private Roads Project 
will explore the technical aspects of reporting mileage, as well as engage rural and tribal 
communities in a conversation about their communities’ priorities in a potential road 
charge system to fund road and highway maintenance.  
 
This pilot will simulate how participants interact with a road charge system by reporting 
mileage and “paying” mock invoices. The pilot will conduct surveys to gauge 
participants’ preferences and experience.  
 
As vehicles become more fuel-efficient and the state’s transition to zero-emission 
vehicles accelerates, Caltrans is researching possible alternatives to the state gas tax, 
which California has historically relied on to build and maintain the state’s transportation 
system. Volatile oil prices and California’s phasing out the sale of new gas-powered 
cars by 2035 add increased urgency to research ways to bring long-term stability to 
transportation funding. For that reason, Caltrans is testing various methods to collect 
per-mile rather than per-gallon fees. 
 
This demonstration is funded through a grant from the U.S. Department of 
Transportation’s Surface Transportation System Funding Alternatives Program and will 
build on Caltrans’ previous road charge pilots: California’s Road Charge Pilot in 2017, 
which introduced the road charge concept to Californians, and California’s Four-Phase 
Demonstration, which tested the road charge concept across several platforms 

http://beworkzonealert.com/
http://www.beworkzonealert.com/move-over.html
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/public-private-roads-project/
https://dot.ca.gov/news-releases/news-release-2021-008
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/california-s-road-charge-pilot/
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/california-four-phase-demonstration/
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/california-four-phase-demonstration/
https://dot.ca.gov/


 

including pay-at-the-pump and electric vehicle charging station systems, usage-based 
insurance, transportation network company fleets, and automated vehicles.  
 
Volunteers interested in participating in the pilot – and the incentive of up to $250 – may 
visit http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/public-private-roads-project/ and complete 
the participant recruitment survey. Participants must be California residents over the 
age of 18. The pilot is employing the highest standards in data protection and 
safeguarding, ensuring that Caltrans will not receive any sensitive information from 
participants. 
 
To learn more about the California Road Charge Project and the Road Charge 
Program, please visit www.caroadcharge.com. 
 
 

### 
 

| CleanCA.com | #BeWorkZoneAlert | Twitter | Facebook | YouTube | 

http://beworkzonealert.com/
http://www.beworkzonealert.com/move-over.html
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/public-private-roads-project/
http://www.caroadcharge.com/
https://cleancalifornia.dot.ca.gov/
https://twitter.com/hashtag/beworkzonealert
https://mobile.twitter.com/CaltransHQ
https://www.facebook.com/CaltransHQ
https://www.youtube.com/user/CaltransVideo


Agenda Item No. 4 Page 1 
 

                                 INYO COUNTY 
      LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

                                                      P.O. DRAWER Q 
                                                               INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 

PHONE:  (760) 878-0201  
FAX:    (760) 878-2001 

Michael Errante 
Executive Director 

 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 
 

MEETING:   February 15, 2023 
 
PREPARED BY:   Justine Kokx, Transportation Planner 
 
SUBJECT:   Informational Item No. 4 – 2nd Quarter Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Invoice to Caltrans 

for Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) funds 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends your Commission to receive this staff report for informational purposes. No action is 
required. 
 
OVERVIEW: 
 
The Inyo County Local Transportation Commission staff has invoiced the State for reimbursement of 
Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) funds in the amount of $78,207 for the 2nd quarter of FY 2022-2023 
(October 1, 2022, through December 31, 2022).  Year to date expenditures amount to $146,758. This 
reimbursement request is for work completed in accordance with the FY 2022-2023 Overall Work 
Program. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
There are three main types of funds included to cover County and City expenses in implementing the 
OWP. These are 1) RPA funds; 2) Planning, Programming, and Monitoring funds (PPM) funds; and 
Local Transportation Funds (LTF) that are primarily related to transit. 
 
RPA are state transportation planning funding included in a State Budget line item, allocated by Caltrans 
per population formula to rural RTPAs. It is provided on a reimbursement basis, after costs are incurred 
and paid for using local funds. This is the primary source of funding for the Inyo County LTC. The 
Caltrans Office of Regional and Interagency Planning (ORIP) administers RPA funds. The LTC receives 
an annual Financial Audit and a performance audit every three years as a condition for receiving these 
funds. 
 
PPM funds are part of the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) and are not to exceed 5% 
of the total funds programmed in the STIP by the Inyo County LTC.  
 
LTF funds are derived from a ¼% of the sales tax received countywide. These funds are a primary 
source of funding for the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority.  A portion of these funds are also used to 

 



Agenda Item No. 4 Page 2 
 

administer the Transportation Development Act and also are set aside for bicycle and pedestrian 
projects. 
 
Each fund type has specific guidelines as to the type of work that can be performed. The Overall Work 
Program sets forth which tasks are eligible for which type of funding. Many tasks can be completed with 
either RPA or PPM funds. In general, the first priority is to expend RPA funds because only 25% of the 
funds can carry over into the next year. PPM funds can be carried over for three years and thus give the 
LTC more flexibility in expending these funds.  
 
SUMMARY DISCUSSION: 
 
RPA 
For the second quarter in FY22-23, $78,207 or 26% of the FY22-23 RPA funds were expended. The 
year-to-date expended percentage is 51%.  This includes the carryover of $57,500 from FY21-22, as 
accepted by Caltrans.  The full allocation is $287,500.  
 
PPM 
In addition, the LTC expended $19,227 or 12% of PPM funds in the second quarter.  The year-to-date 
expended percentage is 19%.  The PPM funds carry over for three years so that in FY22-23 we are 
expending against the FY20-21, FY21-22 & FY22-23 allocations. If we fail to expend the full $156,000 
allocated in FY20-21 the balance will be refundable to the STIP.  
 
Local Transportation Funds (LTF) 
These funds are allocated to the LTC based on ¼% of the Countywide sales tax. The first quarter invoice 
is $15,124 or 17% of the FY22-23 LTF Funds allocated of $89,214. The year-to-date percentage 
expended percentage is 31%. 
 
Moving Forward 
The LTC is on track towards fully expending its RPA allocation of $230,000 this fiscal year.  The Inyo 
County LTC is general has under-expended RPA & PPM funds through the first two quarters. Given the 
current project workload (Regional Transportation Plan Update, Active Transportation Program Plan, 
and Grant proposals) staff believes that the FY22-23 RPA funds will be fully expended over the 
remainder of the Fiscal Year. There will be a need to utilize PPM funding to fill the gap.  The LTC 
prioritizes spending down the more restrictive RPA monies first, followed by PPM.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

• 2nd Quarter FY 2022-2023 Invoice Packet to Caltrans 
 







 1 

Inyo Local Transportation Commission 
FIRST QUARTER OF THE 2022-2023 OVERALL WORK PLAN (OWP) 

 
Work Element 
 
100.1   Compliance and Oversight: 

The principal activity conducted in this work element is the documentation of planning-
related activities, and the support and maintenance of services required to implement the 
transportation planning programs and processes. This includes, preparing agendas, attend 
monthly meetings, completing minutes and updating the ICLTC website 
(https://www.inyocounty.us/services/public-works/inyo-county-local-transportation-
commission).  During the 2nd quarter of FY22-23, Inyo LTC had one regular Commission 
meeting in December, and two special meetings to re-authorize AB361, in October and 
December.  All the meetings were conducted over Zoom.  Worked with Auditors, Price & 
Paige to complete the FY2020-2021 financial audit of the LTC.  Staff continued to migrate 
documents from the inyoltc.org website to the Inyo County LTC webpage.   
 

110.1   Overall Work Program (OWP): 
 Staff prepared and submitted the FY 2022-2023 Q1 RPA/OWP invoice.   Submitted the carry 

over documents to Caltrans and obtained Commission approval.   
 
200.1 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP):  
 Maintain ongoing discussions in anticipation of the up-coming 2024 STIP and RTIP cycle 

between ICLTC staff and ICLTC.  
 
300.1 Administer Transit: 

Administer and allocate Local Transportation Funds and State Transit Assistance. This is an 
on-going activity, including the periodic review of transit route performance reports and 
Transit funding.  This element includes monitoring Eastern Sierra Transit Authority (ESTA), 
a Transportation Development Act (TDA) claimant. October through December monthly 
LTF distributions were made according to current year Resolutions.   
 

310.1 Coordinate Transit Services: 
Focused on optimizing the delivery of transportation services by reviewing opportunities to 
enhance overall transit performance within funding constraints and mindful of public need. 
Continuous reporting and coordination with the County and ESTA on the Transit Security 
Grant program, LTF funding, PTMISEA transit grant, LCTOP and SGR program.  Prepared 
and submitted the SGR semiannual report.  
 

400.1 Project Development and Monitoring: 
We continually monitor and assist with preliminary development of local projects.  Staff has 
been discussing potential for future grant submittals.  LTC staff and Assistant Public Works 
Director participated in a second meeting with LSC Transportation Planning Consultants, 
Inc. (LSC) to prepare for upcoming grant proposals, including the Sustainable Transportation 
Planning grant.  Added contract Amendment No. 4 to the contract with LSC to prepare an 
update to the 2015 Active Transportation Plan.  Entered into a contract with the Center for 

https://www.inyocounty.us/services/public-works/inyo-county-local-transportation-commission
https://www.inyocounty.us/services/public-works/inyo-county-local-transportation-commission


 2 

Economic Development to develop an Economic and Demographic profile of Inyo County 
with an emphasis on the underserved qualities of every community throughout the county.  
The purpose is to enhance the LTC’s ability to apply for grants, primarily where the grant 
must serve disadvantaged communities. Began implementation of the Clean California grant 
program along Lone Pine Main Street. 
 

500.1   Coordination and Regional Planning: 
Staff attended Rural Counties Task Force (RCTF) and RTPA meetings. Staff attended Mono 
County LTC meetings and routinely corresponded with Mono County to share strategies for 
programming and planning and to discuss the continued partnership of the Tri-County MOU.  
A Zoom meeting between Mono and Inyo LTC staff occurred to strategize about the MOU. 
We continued monitoring the implementation of AB628, the OHV shared use pilot program.   
 

510.1   Regional Transportation Plan: 
LSC has begun preliminary work on the RTP, including public outreach. 
 

600.1 Pavement Management System (PMS)/Geographical Information System (GIS): 
Staff continued development of our in-house pavement management system and surveyed 
existing roads.  Staff has been preparing for a third round of data collection for FY22-23.  
Staff conducted the City of Bishop pavement surveys in October.  A report was prepared for 
Commission review.  Surveys of mountain roads will occur in the fall, and of southeast 
County roads during the winter. 
 

700.1 Planning Programming and Monitoring 
Most of these tasks are the same as those in Work Elements 200.1, 400.1, 500.1 and 600.1. 
PPM just represents a second available source of funding. Work in the 2nd Quarter included 
the preparation of multiple Board of Supervisor agenda requests. Attended grant workshops 
to improve awareness of potential future funding opportunities, including Sustainable 
Transportation Planning and Clean California Cycle 2 grant program. Staff has been working 
to update the aging 2015 Active Transportation Plan, as well as identifying potential viable 
projects for the next ATP cycle.   
 
 
 
The 2nd Quarter OWP Invoice Summary is provided below: 
 
 
 
 

Total Q1 Total Q2 % exp To Date
RPA 68,551.17$       RPA 78,206.55$     51.05% 146,757.72$     
LTF 12,334.80$       LTF 15,124.39$     30.78% 27,459.19$       

PPM 10,313.58$       PPM 19,227.96$     19% 29,541.54$       
Total 91,199.55$       Total 112,558.90$   203,758.45$     



 3 

Non-OWP RPA RPA RPA LTF LTF RPA RPA RPA RPA PPM

Other-Non 
OWP

100.1 
Compliance 
& 
Oversight

110.1 
Overall 
Work 
Program

200.1 
Regional 
Trans. 
Impr. Prog.

300.1 
Administer 
Transit

310.1 
Coordinate 
Transit 
Services

400.1 Local 
Project 
Development

500.1 
Coordinatio
n & Reg. 
Plan.

510.1 
Regional 
Transportati
on Plan

600.1 
PMS/GIS

700.1 
Planning, 
Programming
, & 
Monitoring

97,000$             15,000$               10,000$              79,214$                 10,000$                57,000$                    25,000$               48,000$               35,500$              156,000$                532,714.00$   
Enter Fringe Benefits Q2

Vacant 6,653.84 5,988.46$     -$                -$               -$                 665.38$           -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  6,653.84$       
Marjie Chapman 2,458.05 2,212.25$     -$                -$               -$                 245.81$           -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  2,458.05$       
Breanne Nelums 1,245.38 622.69$        124.54$          -$               -$                 124.54$           186.81$              186.81$          -$                -$               -$                  1,245.38$       
Mike Errante 7,172.39 3,586.20$     717.24$          -$               -$                 717.24$           1,075.86$           1,075.86$       -$                -$               -$                  7,172.39$       
Justine Kokx 32,080.25 4,687.08$     3,675.88$       -$               1,143.23$         -$                 4,148.97$           9,969.25$       445.98$          -$               8,009.86$          32,080.25$     
John Pinckney 12,490.69 6,245.35$     1,249.07$       -$               -$                 1,249.07$        1,873.60$           1,873.60$       -$                -$               -$                  12,490.69$     

Total Sal & Bens 23,342.01$   5,766.72$       -$               1,143.23$         3,002.04$        7,285.24$           13,105.52$     445.98$          -$               8,009.86$          62,100.60$     

Enter ADR Totals
5024 PERS Unfunded Lia -$                 -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  -$                
5025 Retiree Health Be 18,276.00$      -$                  6,092.00$     -$                -$               6,092.00$         -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               6,092.00$          18,276.00$     
5121 Internal Charges -$                 -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  -$                
5123 Tech Refresh 3,263.50$        -$                  1,087.83$     -$                -$               1,087.83$         -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               1,087.83$          3,263.50$       

5124 External Charges 12,181.06$      -$                  7.92$            -$                -$               7.92$                -$                 1,906.41$           -$                -$                10,250.88$    7.92$                 12,181.06$     
5129 Internal Copy 
Charges 80.82$             -$                  26.94$          -$                -$               26.94$              -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               26.94$               80.82$            
5152 Workers Comp 645.51$           -$                  215.17$        -$                -$               215.17$            -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               215.17$             645.51$          
5155 Public Liability 1,031.76$        -$                  343.92$        -$                -$               343.92$            -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               343.92$             1,031.76$       
5175 Maintenance Fuel  170.15$           -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                170.15$         -$                  170.15$          
5232 Office & Other 
Equip. -$                 -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  -$                
5263 Advertising -$                 -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  -$                
5650 Equipment -$                 -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  -$                
5265 Professional 
Services 14,472.15$      10,107.15$       3,000.00$     -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                1,365.00$       -$               -$                  14,472.15$     
5311 General 
Operating 876.35$           527.87$            -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                109.51$         238.97$             876.35$          
5315 County Cost Plan 9,616.02$        -$                  3,205.34$     -$                -$               3,205.34$         -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               3,205.34$          9,616.02$       
5331 Travel Expense 480.00$           -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    480.00$          -$                -$               -$                  480.00$          
5539 Other Agency Con -$                 -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  -$                

-$                 -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  -$                
-$                 -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  -$                
-$                 -$                  -$              -$                -$               -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$               -$                  -$                

Total 10,635.02$       13,979.13$   -$                -$               10,979.13$       -$                 1,906.41$           480.00$          1,365.00$       10,530.54$    11,218.10$        61,093.32$     
Grand Total 10,635.02$       37,321.14$   5,766.72$       -$               12,122.36$       3,002.04$        9,191.65$           13,585.52$     1,810.98$       10,530.54$    19,227.96$        123,193.92$   

% Complete 38% 38% 0% 15% 30% 16% 54% 4% 30% 12%

Q2 Summary

 
 
  
 
 



 4 

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission
2022-2023 Overall Work Program-RPA

2nd Quarter Report

Work 
Element 

Work 
Element 

Title

%
 

Ex
pe

nd
ed

 
Q

ua
rte

r 2

Sc
he

du
le

d 
C

om
pl

et
io

n

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

om
pl

et
io

n RPA
Total 

Expended 
2nd Quarter

Total 
Expended to 

Date
Balance

(a) 100.1 Compliance 
& Oversight 

38.48% 06/30/23 $97,000 $37,321.14 $64,162.67 $32,837.33

(b) 110.1 Overall Work 
Program

38.44%

06/30/23

$15,000 $5,766.72

$8,872.51

$6,127.49
(c) 200.1 RTIP 0.00% 06/30/23 $10,000 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00
(f) 400.1  Local 

Project 
Developmen
t 16.13%

06/30/23

$57,000 $9,191.65

$42,824.00

$14,176.00
(g) 500.1  Coord. and 

Reg. 
Planning 54.34%

06/30/23

$25,000 $13,585.52

$17,062.19

$7,937.81
(h) 510.1 RTP 3.77% 12/15/23 $48,000 $1,810.98 $3,250.98 $44,749.02
(i) 600.1 PMS/GIS 29.66% 06/30/23 $35,500 $10,530.54 $10,585.37 $24,914.63

TOTALS $287,500 $78,206.55 $146,757.72 $140,742.28

RPA Budget = $287,500 expended = $146,757.72
 Q1 68,551.17$      

Q2 78,206.55$      
Q3
Q4
Total expended 146,757.72$    

Total remaining $140,742.28
Percent remaining 49%  



 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission
 Overall Work Program-RPA/LTF/PPM

2nd Quarter Report

Work 
Element %

 
Ex

pe
nd

ed
 

Ye
ar

 to
 

D
at

e

Sc
he

du
le

d 
C

om
pl

et
io

n

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

om
pl

et
io

n RPA PPM LTF Transit LTF Transit
Total 

Expended 
2nd Quarter

Total 
Expended to 

Date
Balance

(a) 100.1 66.15% 06/30/23 $97,000 $37,321.14 $64,162.67 $32,837.33
(b) 110.1 

59.15% 06/30/23 $15,000 $5,766.72
$8,872.51

$6,127.49
(c) 200.1 0.00% 06/30/23 $10,000 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00
(d) 300.1 28.61% 06/30/23 $79,214 $12,122.36 $22,659.33 $56,554.67
(e) 310.1 48.00% 06/30/23 $10,000 $3,002.04 $4,799.86 $5,200.14
(f) 400.1  75.13% 06/30/23 $57,000 $9,191.65 $42,824.00 $14,176.00
(g) 500.1  68.25% 06/30/23 $25,000.00 $13,585.52 $17,062.19 $7,937.81
(h) 510.1 6.77% 12/15/23 $48,000.00 $1,810.98 $3,250.98 $44,749.02
(h) 600.1 29.82% 06/30/23 $35,500 $10,530.54 $10,585.37 $24,914.63
(i)700.1 18.94% 06/30/23 $156,000 $19,227.96 $29,541.54 $126,458.46
TOTALS $287,500.00 $156,000.00 $79,214.00 $10,000.00 $112,558.90 $203,758.45 $328,955.55

RPA Budget $287,500 expended = 146,757.72 140,742.28 remaining = 140,742.28 48.95%

PPM Budget $156,000 expended = 29,541.54 126,458.46 remaining = 126,458.46 81.06%

Transit Budget $89,214 expended = 27,459.19 61,754.81 remaining = 61,754.81 69.22%

$203,758.45 $328,955.55

PPM 

Administer Transit
Coordinate Transit

Local Project 
Coord. and Reg. Planning

PMS/GIS
RTP

Work Element Title

Compliance & Oversight 
Overall Work Program

RTIP

 



Oct-22 Non-OWP RPA RPA RPA LTF LTF RPA RPA RPA RPA PPM

OWP Work Elements Other-Non OWP

100.1 
Compliance & 
Oversight

110.1 Overall 
Work Program

200.1 Regional 
Trans. Impr. 
Prog.

300.1 Administer 
Transit

310.1 
Coordinate 
Transit Services

400.1 Local 
Project 
Development

500.1 
Coordination 
& Reg. Plan.

510.1 
Regional 
Transportatio
n Plan 600.1 PMS/GIS

700.1 Planning, 
Programming, 
& Monitoring

FY/22-23 allocations 97,000$           15,000$             10,000$             79,214$              10,000$              57,000$             25,000$        48,000$        35,500$                 156,000$          532,714.00$    
Enter Fringe Benefits Oct-22

Brandon Bardonnex 935.99 842.39$           -$                    -$                    -$                     93.60$                -$                   -$               -$               -$                       -$                   935.99$            935.99$           
Marjie Chapman 706.01 635.41$           -$                    -$                    -$                     70.60$                -$                   -$               -$               -$                       -$                   706.01$            3,154.51$        
Breanne Nelums 360.45 180.23$           36.05$               -$                    -$                     36.05$                54.07$               54.07$           -$               -$                       -$                   360.45$            1,203.14$        
Mike Errante 2,152.72 1,076.36$        215.27$             -$                    -$                     215.27$              322.91$             322.91$        -$               -$                       -$                   2,152.72$         7,928.59$        
Justine Kokx 9,756.67 3,034.32$        731.75$             -$                    370.75$              -$                     2,117.20$         3,219.70$     273.19$        -$                       9.76$                 9,756.67$         36,835.22$      
John Pinckney 3,361.81 1,680.91$        336.18$             -$                    -$                     336.18$              504.27$             504.27$        -$               -$                       -$                   3,361.81$         12,273.00$      

Total 7,449.61$       1,319.25$         -$                    370.75$              751.70$              2,998.44$         4,100.95$     273.19$        -$                       9.76$                 17,273.65$       
Total Sal & Bens 24,657.87$     4,425.03$         -$                    1,274.46$           2,549.52$          20,938.30$       7,522.00$     273.19$        -$                       690.07$             32,905.30$       

Enter ADR Totals
5024 PERS Unfunded Liability -$                   26,082.00$      
5025 Retiree Health Benefits 12,184.00$    4,061.33$        4,061.33$           4,061.33$         12,184.00$       12,184.00$      
5121 Internal Charges -$                  -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                  
5123 Tech Refresh 1,631.75$      543.92$           543.92$              543.92$             1,631.75$         1,631.75$        
5124 External Charges 9.42$              3.14$                3.14$                   3.14$                 9.42$                 39.00$              
5129 Internal Copy Charges 80.82$            26.94$             26.94$                 26.94$               80.82$               80.82$              
5152 Workers Comp 215.17$         71.72$             71.72$                 71.72$               215.17$            860.68$           
5155 Public Liability 343.92$         114.64$           114.64$              114.64$             343.92$            1,375.68$        
5175 Maintenance Fuel & Lubrican 114.88$         114.88$                 114.88$            440.29$           
5232 Office & Other Equip. -$                   -$                  
5263 Advertising -$                   -$                  
5650 Equipment -$                   -$                  
5265 Professional Services 9,100.00$      8,860.00$          240.00$        9,100.00$         27,112.50$      
5311 General Operating 117.51$         109.51$                 8.00$                 117.51$            133.51$           
5315 County Cost Plan 6,410.68$      2,136.89$        2,136.89$           2,136.89$         6,410.68$         6,410.68$        
5331 Travel Expense -$                   -$                  
5539 Other Agency Contributions -$                   123,873.00$   

-$                   -$                  
-$                   -$                  
-$                   -$                  

Total 8,860.00$          6,958.59$       -$                    -$                    6,958.59$           -$                     -$                   -$               240.00$        224.39$                6,966.59$         30,208.15$       
Grand Total 132,733.00$     41,249.73$     4,425.03$         -$                    17,866.32$        2,549.52$          36,630.80$       7,577.61$     1,953.19$     279.22$                17,289.93$       262,554.35$    -262554 -$               

Remaining Balance 55,750.27$     10,574.97$       10,000.00$       61,347.68$        7,450.48$          20,369.20$       17,422.39$  46,046.81$  35,220.78$           138,710.07$    402,892.65$    
% Complete 43% 30% 0% 23% 25% 64% 30% 4% 1% 11%

Budget spread by work elements

100.1 
Compliance & 
Oversight

110.1 Overall 
Work Program

200.1 Regional 
Trans. Impr. 
Prog.

300.1 Administer 
Transit

310.1 
Coordinate 
Transit Services

400.1 Local 
Project 
Development

500.1 
Coordination 
& Reg. Plan.

510.1 
Regional 
Transportatio
n Plan 600.1 PMS/GIS

700.1 Planning, 
Programming, 
& Monitoring

Brandon Bardonnex 0.9 0.1
Marjie Chapman 0.9 0.1 1
Breanne Nelums 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 1
Mike Errante 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 1
Justine Kokx 0.311 0.075 0 0.038 0 0.217 0.33 0.028 0 0.001 1 0
John Pinckney 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 1 0

Total to Date % To Date
RPA 90,162.40$       37.65%
LTF 20,415.84$       22.88%

PPM 17,289.93$       11%
Total 127,868.16$        



Nov-22 Non-OWP RPA RPA RPA LTF LTF RPA RPA RPA RPA PPM

OWP Work Elements Other-Non OWP

100.1 
Compliance & 
Oversight

110.1 Overall 
Work Program

200.1 Regional 
Trans. Impr. 
Prog.

300.1 Administer 
Transit

310.1 
Coordinate 
Transit Services

400.1 Local 
Project 
Development

500.1 
Coordination 
& Reg. Plan.

510.1 
Regional 
Transportatio
n Plan 600.1 PMS/GIS

700.1 Planning, 
Programming, 
& Monitoring

FY/22-23 allocations 97,000$            15,000$              10,000$              79,214$               10,000$               57,000$             25,000$         48,000$         35,500$                 156,000$           532,714.00$     
Enter Fringe Benefits Nov-22

Brandon Bardonnex 2,446.17 2,201.55$        -$                    -$                    -$                      244.62$               -$                    -$                -$                -$                        -$                    2,446.17$         
Marjie Chapman 722.39 650.15$            -$                    -$                    -$                      72.24$                 -$                    -$                -$                -$                        -$                    722.39$             
Breanne Nelums 360.45 180.23$            36.05$                -$                    -$                      36.05$                 54.07$                54.07$           -$                -$                        -$                    360.45$             
Mike Errante 2,154.41 1,077.21$        215.44$              -$                    -$                      215.44$               323.16$             323.16$         -$                -$                        -$                    2,154.41$         
Justine Kokx 8,228.16 1,398.79$        213.93$              -$                    74.05$                 -$                     -$                    6,368.60$     172.79$         -$                        -$                    8,228.16$         
John Pinckney 3,686.29 1,843.15$        368.63$              -$                    -$                      368.63$               552.94$             552.94$         -$                -$                        -$                    3,686.29$         

Total 7,351.07$        834.05$              -$                    74.05$                 936.97$               930.17$             7,298.77$     172.79$         -$                        -$                    17,597.87$       
Total Sal & Bens 32,008.94$      5,259.08$          -$                    1,348.51$           3,486.49$           21,868.47$       14,820.77$   172.79$         -$                        690.07$             32,027.18$       

Enter ADR Totals
5024 PERS Unfunded Liability -$                    
5025 Retiree Health Benefits 3,046.00$      1,015.33$        1,015.33$           1,015.33$          3,046.00$         
5121 Internal Charges -$                    
5123 Tech Refresh -$                    
5124 External Charges -$                    
5129 Internal Copy Charges -$                    
5152 Workers Comp 215.17$          71.72$              71.72$                 71.72$                215.17$             
5155 Public Liability 343.92$          114.64$            114.64$               114.64$             343.92$             
5175 Maintenance Fuel & Lubricant -$                    
5232 Office & Other Equip. -$                    
5263 Advertising -$                    
5650 Equipment -$                    
5265 Professional Services 921.75$          226.75$              695.00$         921.75$             
5311 General Operating 535.87$          527.87$              8.00$                  535.87$             
5315 County Cost Plan 1,602.67$      534.22$            534.22$               534.22$             1,602.67$         
5331 Travel Expense -$                    
5539 Other Agency Contributions -$                    

-$                    
-$                    
-$                    

Total 754.62$              1,735.92$        -$                    -$                    1,735.92$           -$                     -$                    -$                695.00$         -$                        1,743.92$          6,665.38$         
Grand Total 133,487.62$      50,336.72$      5,259.08$          -$                    19,676.29$         3,486.49$           37,560.97$       14,876.38$   2,820.98$     279.22$                 19,033.85$       286,817.60$     -286817.60

Remaining Balance 46,663.28$      9,740.92$          10,000.00$        59,537.71$         6,513.51$           19,439.03$       10,123.62$   45,179.02$   35,220.78$           136,966.15$     379,384.02$     
% Complete 52% 35% 0% 25% 35% 66% 60% 6% 1% 12%

Budget spread by work elements

100.1 
Compliance & 
Oversight

110.1 Overall 
Work Program

200.1 Regional 
Trans. Impr. 
Prog.

300.1 Administer 
Transit

310.1 
Coordinate 
Transit Services

400.1 Local 
Project 
Development

500.1 
Coordination 
& Reg. Plan.

510.1 
Regional 
Transportatio
n Plan 600.1 PMS/GIS

700.1 Planning, 
Programming, 
& Monitoring

Brandon Bardonnex 0.9 0.1
Marjie Chapman 0.9 0.1 1
Breanne Nelums 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 1
Mike Errante 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 1
Justine Kokx 0.17 0.026 0 0.009 0 0 0.774 0.021 0 0 1 0
John Pinckney 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 1 0

Total to Date % To Date
RPA 108,312.37$     45.22%
LTF 23,162.79$       25.96%

PPM 19,033.85$       12%
Total 150,509.00$        



Dec-22 Non-OWP RPA RPA RPA LTF LTF RPA RPA RPA RPA PPM

OWP Work Elements Other-Non OWP

100.1 
Compliance & 
Oversight

110.1 Overall 
Work Program

200.1 Regional 
Trans. Impr. 
Prog.

300.1 Administer 
Transit

310.1 
Coordinate 
Transit Services

400.1 Local 
Project 
Development

500.1 
Coordination & 
Reg. Plan.

510.1 Regional 
Transportation 
Plan 600.1 PMS/GIS

700.1 Planning, 
Programming, 
& Monitoring

FY/22-23 allocations 97,000$            15,000$              10,000$              79,214$               10,000$               57,000$             25,000$             48,000$             35,500$           156,000$           532,714$           
Enter Fringe Benefits Dec-22

Brandon Bardonnex 3,271.68 2,944.51$        -$                    -$                    -$                      327.17$               -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                  -$                    3,271.68$         
Marjie Chapman 1,029.65 926.69$            -$                    -$                    -$                      102.97$               -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                  -$                    1,029.65$         
Breanne Nelums 524.48 262.24$            52.45$                -$                    -$                      52.45$                 78.67$                78.67$                -$                    -$                  -$                    524.48$             
Mike Errante 2,865.26 1,432.63$        286.53$              -$                    -$                      286.53$               429.79$             429.79$             -$                    -$                  -$                    2,865.26$         
Justine Kokx 14,095.42 253.97$            2,730.19$          -$                    698.42$               -$                     2,031.77$          380.96$             -$                    -$                  8,000.10$          14,095.42$       
John Pinckney 5,442.59 2,721.30$        544.26$              -$                    -$                      544.26$               816.39$             816.39$             -$                    -$                  -$                    5,442.59$         

Total 8,541.33$        3,613.43$          -$                    698.42$               1,313.37$           3,356.62$          1,705.81$          -$                    -$                  8,000.10$          27,229.08$       
Total Sal & Bens 40,550.27$      8,872.51$          -$                    2,046.93$           4,799.86$           25,225.09$       16,526.58$       -$                    -$                  8,690.17$          106,711.41$     

Enter ADR Totals
5024 PERS Unfunded Liability -$                    
5025 Retiree Health Benefits 3,046.00$      1,015.33$        1,015.33$           1,015.33$          3,046.00$         
5121 Internal Charges -$                    
5123 Tech Refresh 1,631.75$      543.92$            543.92$               543.92$             1,631.75$         
5124 External Charges 12,171.64$    4.78$                4.78$                   1,906.41$          10,250.88$     4.78$                  12,171.64$       
5129 Internal Copy Charges -$                    
5152 Workers Comp 215.17$          71.72$              71.72$                 71.72$                215.17$             
5155 Public Liability 343.92$          114.64$            114.64$               114.64$             343.92$             
5175 Maintenance Fuel & Lubrican 55.27$            55.27$             55.27$               
5232 Office & Other Equip. -$                    
5263 Advertising -$                    
5650 Equipment -$                    
5265 Professional Services 4,450.40$      1,020.40$          3,000.00$        430.00$             4,450.40$         
5311 General Operating 222.97$          222.97$             222.97$             
5315 County Cost Plan 1,602.67$      534.22$            534.22$               534.22$             1,602.67$         
5331 Travel Expense 480.00$          480.00$             480.00$             
5539 Other Agency Contributions -$                    

-$                    
-$                    
-$                    

Total 1,020$                5,285$              -$                    -$                    2,285$                 -$                     1,906$                480$                   430$                   10,306$           2,508$                24,220$             
Grand Total 134,508$            64,163$            8,873$                -$                    22,659$               4,800$                 42,824$             17,062$             3,251$                10,585$           29,542$             338,266$           -338266

Remaining Balance 32,837$            6,127$                10,000$              56,555$               5,200$                 14,176$             7,938$                44,749$             24,915$           126,458$           328,956$           
% Complete 66% 59% 0% 29% 48% 75% 68% 7% 30% 19%

Budget spread by work elements

100.1 
Compliance & 
Oversight

110.1 Overall 
Work Program

200.1 Regional 
Trans. Impr. 
Prog.

300.1 Administer 
Transit

310.1 
Coordinate 
Transit Services

400.1 Local 
Project 
Development

500.1 
Coordination & 
Reg. Plan.

510.1 Regional 
Transportation 
Plan 600.1 PMS/GIS

700.1 Planning, 
Programming, 
& Monitoring

Brandon Bardonnex 0.9 0.1
Marjie Chapman 0.9 0.1 1
Breanne Nelums 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 1
Mike Errante 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 1
Justine Kokx 0.018018018 0.193693694 0 0.04954955 0 0.144144144 0.027027027 0 0 0.567567568 1 0
John Pinckney 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 1 0

Total to Date % exp To Date
RPA 146,757.72$     61.28%
LTF 27,459.19$       30.78%

PPM 29,541.54$       19%
Total 203,758.45$        















































































































































































































1 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
To: Local Transportation Commission 

From: Shannon Platt, Public Works, Deputy Director/Roads 

Date: 1-11-2023 

RE: Buttermilk Rd. 

In the past Inyo County Road Department has maintained the first approximately 3.5 miles of Buttermilk 
Rd. It was maintained to the same standard as the other 600+ miles of dirt road in the county using the 
same maintenance procedures. This entails using a motor grader to cut the wash boarding off, gathering 
the material that has been displaced to the sides of the road by normal traffic including gathering 
material from the berms along the sides of the road. This large berm is then repeatedly worked back and 
forth across the road filling in the low spots, repairing water damage and bringing the road back to 
shape. Excess material is then pushed back into the maintenance berm along the side of the road for 
future use. Water drains are opened. Encroaching brush is mowed or removed. 

Approximately six +/- years ago the Forest service approached the County and asked we grade an 
additional 3 miles of the road. Prior to work beginning the County and Forest Service met on site. This is 
when the County learned of the differences between the two agencies approach to road maintenance. 
The County basically has open or closed roads with no differing levels of maintenance. Open roads are 
maintained in a way that an average vehicle can use them, whether paved or dirt. The Forest Service has 
differing levels of maintenance ranging from asphalt paved roads to roads that are approved for high 
clearance four-wheel drive vehicles only. As a courtesy the County did the requested work as requested 
but this led to discussion of maintaining the initial portion of the road from Hwy 168 to the climbing 
area. The Forest Service requested we change our established maintenance procedures that included 
using the berms along the side of the road, pruning brush growing in the berms and clearing the water 
drainage ditches as we do on other County roads. For the County to maintain Buttermilk Rd in the 
manner suggested by the Forest Service, all operations would stay on the literal travelled way without 
using the maintenance berms, continually lowering the roadbed over time, or hauling in material.  

Our current maintenance operation uses one road grader for one week, at a cost of approximately 
$5,400.00. To maintain it staying within current Forest Service practices would lengthen the project to 
up to four weeks in length, including hauling material up from Bishop. The approximate cost would be 
over $56,000.00 including operators and assorted equipment. This single annual road project would take 
away considerable time and resources from our normal maintenance operations. If funding could be 
found to support a rehabilitation project, not only evaluating what the best construction options are and 
the best course going forward but also maintaining it into the future, the County may be interested in 
assisting.   

County of 
INYO 

ROAD DEPARTMENT  
P.O. DRAWER Q 

INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526 
(760) 878-0201 

(760) 878-2001 FAX 

Michael Errante - Public Works Director 
John Pinckney – Public Works Assistant Director 
Shannon Platt – Public Works Deputy Director/Roads   



2 
 

During the same timeframe as the road department working on the upper portion of the road the 
County received multiple complaints from residents in the Starlite Community. The high number of 
vehicles traveling at high speed on the first portion of Buttermilk Rd. was causing a thick dust cloud that 
blew south covering the Starlite community. It was determined that to slow down the speeds the road 
would be allowed to deteriorate into such condition as to cause people to drive slower but remain 
passable. To repair the road with similar materials would again cause these dust complaints to be an 
issue. For the County to repair the road and use some sort of dust control treatment would still leave 
the ongoing maintenance differences between agencies, the additional cost and the preferential 
treatment of a single road used by comparatively few. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 


	#01 LTC February 15 2023 Agenda
	INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

	#01a LTC DRAFT MINUTES January 18 2023
	INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

	#02 2023_1_31 Caltrans PPRP News Release RE Recruiting_wa05 CLEAN calsta1_31_23
	News Release

	#04 Staff Report FY22-23 OWP invoice Q2
	S T A F F   R E P O R T

	#04a FY22-23 Q2 RPA-OWP submittal and backup
	LTC Letterhead
	FY22-23 Q2 RFR RPA funds
	Q2 OWP Narrative Summary 2022-2023
	Work Element

	Invoice summary October 2022 (2)
	October 

	invoice summary November 2022
	November 

	invoice summary December 2022
	December 

	FY22-23 Q2 OWP backup

	#05 Buttermilk Rd. Info_
	ADPA125.tmp
	County of
	ROAD DEPARTMENT
	P.O. DRAWER Q





